
 
 

 MEETING OF THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

June 18, 2018 at 8:30 a.m. 
 

King County Housing Authority 
Snoqualmie Conference Room 

700 Andover Park W 
Tukwila, WA 98188 

 

***AMENDED*** 
A G E N D A 

I. Call to Order  

II. Roll Call  

III. Public Comment  

IV. Approval of Minutes  
 

A. Board Meeting Minutes – May 21, 2018 

1 

V. Approval of Agenda  

VI. Consent Agenda  

A. Voucher Certification Report for April 2018 

B. Resolution No. 5598: A Resolution of the Housing Authority of the 

County of King authorizing the Executive Director to submit an application 

for funding under the Washington State Department of Commerce Housing 

Preservation Program to finance capital improvements to Nike Manor 

2 
 
 
3 

VII. Resolutions for Discussion & Possible Action 
 
A. Resolution No. 5599: Authorizing Higher Payment Standards for the 

Housing Choice Voucher Program 

 
 
4 
 
 
 
 



KCHA Board of Commissioner’s Agenda - Amended 6.17.18 
June 18, 2018 Board Meeting 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
VIII. Executive Session 

To consider the selection of a site or the acquisition of real estate by lease or 

purchase when public knowledge regarding such consideration would cause a 

likelihood of increased price (RCW 42.30.110 (1) (b)) 

IX. Resolutions for Discussion & Possible Action (Continued) 
 

A. Resolution No. 5600: Authorizing acquisition of the Howe Property 

located in Redmond, Washington 

 
X. Briefings & Reports  

 
A. New Bank Accounts 6 

B. 2018 Midyear Federal Revenue Update 7 

XI. Executive Director Report       

XII. KCHA in the News  8 

XIII. Commissioner Comments 

XIV. Adjournment 

Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or 
assistance at the meeting are requested to notify the Board Coordinator, Jessica 
Olives, in writing at 600 Andover Park West, Seattle, WA 98188 or by calling 
206-574-1194 prior to the meeting date. 

5 



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
1 



ANNUAL MEETING MINUTES 
 OF THE 

KING COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
Monday, May 21, 2018 

 
 
I.  CALL TO ORDER 
 

The meeting of the King County Housing Authority Board of Commissioners was 
held on Monday, May 21, 2018 at King County Housing Authority, 600 Andover 
Park West, Tukwila WA. There being a quorum, the meeting was called to order by 
Chair Doug Barnes at 8:30 a.m.  

 
II. ROLL CALL  
 
 Present: Commissioner Doug Barnes (Chair), Commissioner Michael Brown 

(Vice-Chair), Commissioner TerryLynn Stewart, Commissioner 
Susan Palmer, and Commissioner John Welch 

  
III. Public Comment 

 
None. 

 
IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
  

A. Board Meeting Minutes – March 19, 2018 
On motion by Commissioner Palmer and seconded by Commissioner Stewart, 
the Board unanimously approved the March 19, 2018 Board of Commissioners’ 
Meeting Minutes. 

 
V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

On motion by Commissioner Stewart and seconded by Commissioner Brown, 
the Board unanimously approved the May 21, 2018 Board of Commissioners’ 
meeting agenda. 

 
VI.  CONSENT AGENDA 

 

A. Voucher Certification Reports for February 2018 

GENERAL PROPERTIES 

    Bank Wires / ACH Withdrawals 

 

2,592,466.40 

 

Subtotal 2,592,466.40 

    Accounts Payable Vouchers 

               Key Bank Checks #314404 - #314878 

 

7,203,388.51 

Tenant Accounting Checks #10546 - #10564  3,503.19 



KCHA Board of Commissioners’ 
May 21, 2018 Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of 5 
 

Commerce Bank Direct Payment  44,045.67 

 

Subtotal 7,250,937.37 

    Payroll Vouchers 
              Checks - #90783 - # 90814    37,834.46 

            Direct Deposit   1,451,613.34 

 
Subtotal 1,489,447.80 

    Section 8 Program Vouchers 
            Checks - #620603 - #620906 
 

268,254.17 
          ACH  - #407279-#410051 

 
12,608,734.12 

 
Subtotal 12,876,988.29 

 
    Purchase Card / ACH Withdrawal 

 
279,778.41 

 
Subtotal 279,778.41 

   

 

GRAND 
TOTAL 24,489,618.27 

 
BOND PROPERTIES 
Bond Properties Total (37 different properties) $2,571,872.20 

 

 

 

B. Voucher Certification Reports for March 2018 

GENERAL PROPERTIES 

    Bank Wires / ACH Withdrawals 

 

52,718,705.22 

 

Subtotal 52,718,705.22 

    Accounts Payable Vouchers 

               Key Bank Checks #314879 - #315515 

 

6,600,640.51 

Tenant Accounting Checks #10565 - #10585  1,773.69 

Commerce Bank Direct Payment  39,232.99 

 

Subtotal 6,641,647.19 

    Payroll Vouchers 
              Checks - #90815 - # 90854    46,351.42 

            Direct Deposit   1,465,875.18 

 
Subtotal 1,512,226.60 

    Section 8 Program Vouchers 
            Checks - #620907 - #621217 
 

209,747.95 
          ACH  - #410052-#412808 

 
12,773,524.78 

 
Subtotal 12,983,272.73 

 
    Purchase Card / ACH Withdrawal 

 
214,502.96 

 
Subtotal 214,502.96 

   

 



KCHA Board of Commissioners’ 
May 21, 2018 Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 of 5 
 

 

GRAND 
TOTAL $74,070,354.70 

 
BOND PROPERTIES 
Bond Properties Total (37 different properties) $15,643,460.81 

 

 

On motion by Commissioner Palmer and seconded by Commissioner Stewart, 
the Board unanimously approved consent agenda. 
 

 

VII.  RESOLUTONS FOR DISCUSSION & POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

A. Resolution No. 5594: Authorizing Jill Stanton as contracting officer, 
signator, and agent designated to receive claims for damages 
 
Outgoing Deputy Executive Director Connie Davis, introduced Jill Stanton as 
her replacement, and explained Resolution No. 5594; allowing for the transfer 
of signature authority and designated as agent to receive claims for damages to 
Ms. Stanton.  
 
On motion by Commissioner Palmer and seconded by Commissioner Brown, 
the Board unanimously approved Resolution No. 5594. 

 
B. Resolution No. 5595: Authorizing the Authority to loan its Energy 

Performance Project up to $7.5 million to finance energy efficiency 
improvements at Public Housing properties; and authorizing the execution of 
related documents 
 
Connie Davis presented Resolution No. 5595, and provided background 
information on the Energy Performance Contract (EPC), as well as explained 
the process and risks associated with the proposed incremental loan to the 
EPC project.   
 
On motion by Commissioner Stewart and seconded by Commissioner Palmer, 
the Board unanimously approved Resolution No. 5595. 
 

C. Resolution No. 5596: Authorizing Termination of the Swap and Caps for 
2005 Pool 
 
Tim Walter, presented background information on Resolution No. 5596, and 
mentioned that the current swap provider requires acknowledgement by the 
Board of this transaction.  
 

 



KCHA Board of Commissioners’ 
May 21, 2018 Meeting Minutes 
Page 4 of 5 
 

On motion by Commissioner Brown and seconded by Commissioner Stewart, 
the Board unanimously approved Resolution No. 5596. 
 

D. Resolution No. 5597: Honorary Resolution commending Connie Davis, 
outgoing Deputy Executive Director, for over 23 years of service and 
commitment to the King County Housing Authority  
 
No action was required to be taken by the Board. 
 

VIII. BRIEFINGS AND REPORTS  
 

A. Fourth Quarter 2017 Financial Report 
Mr. Violante briefed the Board on the Financial Statements for the Fourth 
Quarter in Calendar Year 2017. 
 

B. First Quarter 2018 Financial Report 
Mr. Violante also briefed the Board on the Financial Statements for the 
First Quarter in Calendar Year 2018. 

 
C. First Quarter 2018 Summary Write-offs 

Mr. Violante also presented the Write-Offs for the First Quarter of 2018. 
 

D. New Bank Accounts 
Craig Violante, Director of Finance, mentioned that KCHA opened four (4) 
new bank accounts with KeyBank. 

 
E. First Quarter 2018 Procurement Report 

Staff reported on the procurement activities for the period of January 
through March 2018. The report represents the activity involved in the 
award of contracts over the amount of $100,000 and change orders that 
cumulatively exceed 10% of the original contract amount.   
 

F. First Quarter 2018 Dashboard Report 
Andrew Calkins, Policy Administrative Program Manager provided an 
update on the Executive Dashboard Report. 
 

G. Resident Characteristics Report 
A report on KCHA’s Resident Characteristics was provided by Alexis Warth, 
Senior Management Analyst, and included a summary of the 2017 analyses 
of KCHA households 
 
 
 
 

 



KCHA Board of Commissioners’ 
May 21, 2018 Meeting Minutes 
Page 5 of 5 
 
IX. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 
Stephen Norman, Executive Director provided an update on the Firs Mobile 
Home Park, located in the City of SeaTac, and the Renewal Funding Inflation 
Factors (RFIF). Mr. Norman mentioned that KCHA’s annual report was part of 
the Board materials. Mr. Norman also provided a brief overview of two recent 
media publications, one issued by The Stranger, and the other by SLATE 
Magazine.  
 

X. KCHA IN THE NEWS 

 None. 

XI.  COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

Chair Barnes adjourned the meeting at 10:41 a.m.  
 
 

 
THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE  

COUNTY OF KING, WASHINGTON 
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
DOUGLAS J. BARNES, Chair  

Board of Commissioners 
 

 
________________________  
    STEPHEN J. NORMAN 
    Secretary 

 



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
2 













T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
3 



 
 
 
T0:  Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Daniel Landes, Senior Development Manager 
 
Date June 12, 2018 
 
Re:  Resolution No. 5598: A Resolution of the Housing Authority of the County 

of King authorizing the Executive Director to submit an application for funding 
under the Washington State Department of Commerce Housing Preservation 
Program to finance improvements to Nike Manor 

 
Nike Manor was acquired by KCHA from the Federal government in 1990. The 31 unit 
property covers 9.4 acres and was originally used to house crews for the region’s Nike missile 
installations. The site is not part of the public housing program and receives no on-going 
subsidies from the Federal government. There is no existing debt on the property. Oversight 
of the property is provided by the Asset Management Department.  
 
As part of the disposition agreement with the Federal government under the Surplus Military 
Housing Program of the McKinney-Vento Act, the site is reserved for programs serving 
homeless households until 2024. For over twenty years KCHA has leased this housing to a 
consortium of non-profit homeless service providers – the Multi-Service Center, St. Stephens 
Housing Association and Navos Mental Health Solutions – who provide emergency shelter, 
transitional housing and permanent housing for homeless individuals and families. 
Operations of the site are covered by lease payments from the providers and limited 
operating subsidies from Washington State. Cash flow on the property is not adequate to the 
on-going capital replacement needs of the property. 
 
The buildings at Nike Manor were constructed in 1963 and are now in need of significant 
capital upgrades. KCHA recently commissioned a Capital Needs Assessment from Jeff 
Samdal & Associates, and it identified over $600,000 in necessary near-term capital 
improvements. 
 
In 2017, the Washington State Legislature created the Housing Preservation Program, setting 
aside $10,000,000 to finance major capital improvements at properties that previously 
received funding through the Housing Trust Fund.  The Washington State Department of 
Commerce issued a Notice of Funding Availability (“NOFA”) for this program with an 
application deadline of June 30, 2018. KCHA staff have reviewed the NOFA and determined 
that Nike Manor met the minimum criteria needed to submit an application for funding. 
 
Resolution No. 5598 authorizes KCHA staff to submit an application for up to $750,000 in 
grant funding from the Housing Preservation Program to be used to finance near–term 
capital needs including roof and siding replacements. Staff recommends approval of this 
resolution. 
 



 

 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 5598 

 
(Nike Manor) 

 
 
  
  

 A RESOLUTION of the Housing Authority of the County of King authorizing 
the Executive Director to submit an application for funding under the Washington State 
Department of Commerce Housing Preservation Program to finance improvements to 
Nike Manor. 

 
 
 

ADOPTED June 18, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Resolution No. 5598 Nike Manor 
June 18, 2018 KCHA Board Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 5598 
 

(Nike Manor) 
 
  

 A RESOLUTION of the Housing Authority of the County of King authorizing 
the Executive Director to submit an application for funding under the Washington State 
Department of Commerce Housing Preservation Program to finance improvements to 
Nike Manor. 
 
WHEREAS, RCW 35.82.070(5) provides that a housing authority may, among other things and if 

certain conditions are met, “lease or rent any dwellings . . . buildings, structures or facilities embraced in any 

housing project”; and 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of King (the “Authority”) seeks to encourage 

the provision of housing for low-income persons residing within King County, Washington; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 35.82.020 defines “housing project” to include, among other things, “any work 

or undertaking . . . to provide decent, safe and sanitary urban or rural dwellings, apartments, mobile home 

parks, or other living accommodations for persons of low income”; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 35.82.070(02) provides that a housing authority has the power  “to provide for 

the construction, reconstruction, improvement, alteration or repair of any housing project or any part thereof” 

; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has owned certain real property called Nike Manor located at 23948 35th 

Place South, Kent, Washington currently containing 31 units of low income housing since 1990 and has used 

this property to provide emergency shelter, transitional housing and permanent housing for homeless 

individuals and families (the “Project”); and  

WHEREAS, the Washington State Legislature created a Housing Preservation Program (“HPP”) 

in 2017 which set aside $10,000,000 for major building improvements, preservation, and system 

replacements necessary for the long-term viability of the housing properties previously financed in whole 

or in part with funding from the Washington State Department of Commerce (“WSDOC”) through its 

 



Resolution No. 5598 Nike Manor 
June 18, 2018 KCHA Board Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 
 
Housing Trust Fund (“HTF”), and WSDOC has issued a Notice of Funding Availability for this program; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Project has been previously financed in part by WSDOC’s HTF and therefore is 

eligible to apply for the funding through the Housing Preservation Program; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Authority desires to make necessary capital improvements to the Project; and,  

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING; THAT:  

Section 1: The Authority is authorized and directed to submit an application to the Washington 

State Department of Commerce for up to $750,000 of funds from the Housing Preservation Program for 

near-term capital improvements at the Project, and should this application be awarded funds, the 

Executive Director is authorized to execute any agreements necessary to secure such funds, including but 

not limited to covenents, contracts, loan agreements, notes, deeds of trust, regulatory agreements and such 

other documents as may be deemed reasonable by the Executive Director. 

Section 2.  Effective Date.  This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

adoption and approval. 

ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY 

OF THE COUNTY OF KING THIS 18TH DAY OF JUNE, 2018. 

 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF 

KING 
 
 
By: 

Chair 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Executive Director 
 

 



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
4 



 
 
 
 
To: Board of Commissioners           
  
From: Andrew Calkins, Senior Program Manager 
 
Date: June 12, 2018 
 
Re:       Resolution No. 5599: Authorizing Higher Payment Standards for the 

Housing Choice Voucher Program 
 
Executive Summary 
Payment standards are an important component of KCHA’s work to ensure that the 
nearly 10,000 households using a tenant-based voucher through the Housing Choice 
Voucher Program (HCV or Section 8) can secure and maintain safe and affordable 
housing, across the county. Since the Housing Authority’s transition from a two-tiered 
to multi-tiered system, in March 2016, KCHA has increased payment standards to keep 
pace with increasing local rental market costs. While payment standards have 
traditionally been adjusted only once, at the beginning of each year, this year staff 
engaged in a process to analyze the rental market throughout the year and if necessary, 
to make mid-year adjustments. At the June 18th, 2018 Board of Commissioners meeting, 
staff will present high-level findings from this mid-year analysis, and will request 
approval of moderately higher payment standards in three of the six payment standard 
tiers.  
 
The proposed payment standard adjustment, when combined with the December 2017 
adjustment and expected voucher-level rent inflation of 6.5%, will increase the 
annualized cost of Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) within the Moving to Work 
(MTW) block grant by $7.6 million upon full implementation. While the majority of this 
cost is attributable to the previously-approved December 2017 payment standard 
change, and projected over-all 2018 rent inflation and included in the 2018 budget, 
$480,494 is attributable to this payment standard change.  
 
Background 
Payment standards represent the maximum amount that a housing authority will 
provide to a voucher holder to assist with rent and utilities. While housing authorities 
typically have a single payment standard, set at a level between 90% and 110% of the 
area’s Fair Market Rent, since 1999 KCHA has maintained multiple payment standards. 
In 2016, the Board expanded the two-tiered system of payments standards (which 
involved a regular standard and an “exception area” standard that covered East King 
County) to create a ZIP code-based, multi-tiered structure with five payment standard 
levels. In November 2017, the Board approved additional changes to this system to 
include: higher payment standards, shifting ZIP codes across tiers, and the 
identification of a new (sixth) tier. 
 



Resolution No. 5599 Authorizing Higher Payment Standards 
June 18, 2018 KCHA Board Meeting 
Page 2 of 5 
 
The Board’s initial adoption of multi-tiered payment standards and subsequent 
refinement to the system recognizes the importance of closely aligning payment 
standards to local rental sub-markets as a means of achieving four key aims:  
 
(1)  Increasing access to high opportunity areas;  
(2)  Containing costs by “right-sizing” subsidies in lower and middle cost markets;  
(3) Ensuring that new and existing voucher holders can secure and maintain their 

housing in competitive and increasingly costly rental markets; and  
(4)  Containing shelter burdens for most households participating in the program in the 

30% to 40% of income range.  
 
An internal outcomes assessment of the multi-tiered payment standard system, 
completed in 2017, concluded that the system is largely achieving these aims. In the year 
following implementation, moves to more costly and higher opportunity areas nearly 
doubled among families with children, KCHA saw considerable cost containment as a 
result of more fine-grained payment standards, shelter burdens dropped and shopping 
success rates were slightly higher. 
 
2018 Mid-Year Payment Standards Review Process 
KCHA has made a commitment to review payment standards at least on an annual basis 
to ensure that each ZIP code is placed in the tier that best matches its rental market, 
that the multi-tiered system continues to capture the full variability of rents across King 
County, and that standards are set at the 40th percentile level within each tier. In recent 
years, market rents have increased drastically throughout the year, putting outsized 
pressure on voucher holders trying to find and remain in their housing. To more 
proactively respond to these market pressures, staff has undertaken a process in 
between these annual analyses to study the rental market and make any necessary 
interim adjustments to the payment standard amounts. Due to the complexity and 
administrative burden of moving ZIP codes across tiers and/or adding new tiers, interim 
analyses are confined to potential changes to be made to the payment standard amounts 
themselves. 
 
During this year’s analysis, staff reviewed external market rent data from Apartment 
Insights and Zillow, and reviewed these trends against those rents paid by existing and 
new voucher holders in different areas of the county.1 As with last year’s analysis, staff 
also incorporated feedback from housing caseworkers and other members of the HCV 
team. 
 
Analysis Findings 
According to Zillow, median rents in King County have risen 18.3% over the last three 
years. However, in the last year, growth has slowed considerably with rents increasing 
by only 1.2%. This cooling off of rents masks the continued growth in rents in 
traditionally low-cost areas of South King County that see large concentrations of KCHA 
voucher holders. Zillow reports median rent increases over the last year of 7.0% in Kent, 
7.2% in Auburn, 6.2% in Des Moines, 5.1% in Burien, and 4.6% in Federal Way. 
Conversely, the high cost cities of Kirkland, Issaquah, and Redmond in Tiers 5 and 6 

1 KCHA has traditionally used Dupre + Scott to analyze payment standards. Dupre + Scott closed their business suddenly at 
the end of 2017 and their survey data is no longer being updated. 

                                                 



Resolution No. 5599 Authorizing Higher Payment Standards 
June 18, 2018 KCHA Board Meeting 
Page 3 of 5 
 
have all seen increases at or below 1.0%. Data from Apartment Insights further supports 
these trends while revealing that there is variance in growth rates between one- and 
two-bedroom rents. Specifically, in Tier 1 rents have grown faster for two-bedroom 
units; in Tiers 2 and 3 one-bedroom rents have risen faster. 
 
External market trends largely align with those observed by HCV staff members and 
internal KCHA data on rents paid by voucher holders. Specifically, households currently 
leased in Tiers 1, 2, and 3, which largely encompass areas of South and North King 
County, have seen higher rent increase percentages from landlords: 6.8% in Tier 1, 6.3% 
in Tier 2, and 8.9% in Tier 3, versus 5.2% in Tier 6. Further, households in Tiers 1, 2, 
and 3 are considerably more likely to lease at a rent level above the current payment 
standards. As of May 1st, between 22% and 25% of one-bedroom voucher holders in 
these tiers were renting units above the payment standard, versus between 8% and 11% 
of those in Tiers 4, 5, and 6. 
 
Recommended Payment Standard Adjustments 
To respond to the continued upward pressure on rents in lower cost areas of King 
County, staff is recommending a moderate increase in payment standard amounts in 
Tiers 1, 2, and 3. While reflecting a lower rate of increase than previous Board-approved 
payment standard changes, these adjustments will ensure that the multi-tiered system 
continues to achieve its aims throughout the year. 
 

Existing vs. Recommended 2018 Payment Standards* 

  Studios 1 BR 2 BR 3 BR 4 BR 

Tier 1 Current $900 +30 $1,085 +40 $1,325 +60 $1,725 +70 $2,320 +70 
Proposed $930 $1,125 $1,385 $1,795 $2,390 

Tier 2 Current $960 +20 $1,160 +25 $1,420 +15 $1,845 +25 $2,345 +80 
Proposed $980 $1,185 $1,435 $1,870 $2,425 

Tier 3 Current $1,060 +30 $1,210 +35 $1,475 +15 $1,920 +30 $2,580 +40 
Proposed $1,090  $1,245 $1,490 $1,950 $2,620 

Tier 4 Current $1,100 $1,435 $1,670 $2,180 $2,840 
 -- -- -- -- -- 

Tier 5 Current $1,305 $1,620 $1,835 $2,385 $3,165 
 -- -- -- -- -- 

Tier 6 Current $1,630 $1,760 $2,065 $2,685 $3,405 
 -- -- -- -- -- 

 
* Five and six bedroom payment standards are determined by applying a factor of 1.15 and 1.30 to the four bedroom payment standard. 

 
At current rent levels, the payment standards would reduce the percentage of tenant-
based households spending more than 40% of their income on rent from 18% to 11%.2 
As with past adjustments, staff is proposing to implement new payment standards on a 
rolling basis at a households’ next interim or annual reexamination (for working 
households on the WIN Rent program this could take up to two years; for fixed income 
households on the EASY Rent program it could take up to three years). Severely rent 

2 When excluding households renting units with more bedrooms than their voucher subsidizes, the percentage of shelter-
burdened households will decrease from 15% to 8%. 

                                                 



Resolution No. 5599 Authorizing Higher Payment Standards 
June 18, 2018 KCHA Board Meeting 
Page 4 of 5 
 
burdened households would have the option of filing a hardship request for 
implementation of the new standards – which could then take place immediately.  
 
Financial Impact 
Increasing payment standards involves a substantial investment from the housing 
authority’s budget. In addition to increasing the costs associated with current 
households and existing rent levels, higher payment standards also raise the ceiling on 
the amount of HAP costs that KCHA may incur as a result of future rent increases. 
While the proposed payment standard increase is expected to increase HAP costs by 
$480,494, we received a higher than budgeted Rental Funding Inflation Factor (RFIF) 
which will increase our HAP revenue this year and our baseline funding going forward. 
We believe this increase will be sufficient to cover the increased costs of both the 
December 2017 and 2018 payment standard changes over the next couple of years. We 
will continue to closely monitor our HCV program revenues and expenses.  
 
Staff Recommendation 
Approval of Resolution No. 5599 is recommended. 



Resolution No. 5599 Authorizing Higher Payment Standards 
June 18, 2018 KCHA Board Meeting 
Page 5 of 5 
 
APPENDIX A:  2018 Multi-Tiered Payment Standards 
 

Tier Configuration 
 

Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 Tier 5 Tier 6 
98047 98070 98031 98008 98056 98059 
98002 98108 98030 98001 98038 98007 
98010 98022 98023 98028 98074 98006 
98051 98042 98065 98058 98075 98004 

 
98166 98045 98133 98053 98040 

 
98146 98032 98057 98072 98005 

 
98168 98024 98055 98027 98033 

 
98092 98019 

 
98011 98029 

 
98148 98014 

 
98034 98052 

 
98188 98177 

 
98077 98039 

 
98198 98178 

   
 

98003 98155 
   

 
98106 

    
 

98126 
    

 
98354  

   
 

98288  
   

 
98224  

    
 

Payment Standards Amounts 
 

 Studios 1 BR 2 BR 3 BR 4 BR 
Tier 1 $930  $1,125  $1,385  $1,795  $2,390  
Tier 2 $980  $1,185  $1,435  $1,870  $2,425  
Tier 3 $1,090  $1,245  $1,490  $1,950  $2,620  
Tier 4 $1,100  $1,435  $1,670  $2,180  $2,840  
Tier 5 $1,305  $1,620  $1,835  $2,385  $3,165  
Tier 6 $1,630  $1,760  $2,065  $2,685  $3,405  

 
 

Distribution of Tenant-Based Vouchers by Tier & Bedroom Size 
May 1, 2018 

 

 Studios 1 BR 2 BR 3 BR 4 BR+ 
Tier 1 2 217 233 79 22 
Tier 2 38 1417 1317 697 358 
Tier 3 20 728 1110 698 397 
Tier 4 12 296 258 164 90 
Tier 5 4 158 244 100 46 
Tier 6 25 510 510 236 41 

 



THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING 
 

RESOLUTION No. 5599 
 

AUTHORIZING HIGHER PAYMENT STANDARDS FOR THE  
HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER PROGRAM 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Housing Choice Voucher payment standards are the maximum 

subsidy levels used to calculate the housing assistance a household will receive under 

the Housing Choice Voucher program; and 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority’s Board of Commissioners authorized 

implementation of a multi-tiered payment standard system with five tiers by passing 

Resolution No. 5531, dated the 16th of February 2016; and 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority has committed to reviewing the multi-tiered 

payment standards system, and the configuration of ZIP codes therein on at least an 

annual basis; and 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority last increased payment standards and 

implemented a sixth tier on the 20th day of November 2017; and 

WHEREAS, it has been determined that an additional increase in payment 

standards in Tiers 1, 2, and 3 will ensure that standards continue to match regional rent 

trends, maintain voucher holder lease-up rates, and limit shelter burden; and 

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the payment standard increases will 

more closely align subsidy levels with submarket rents and continue to ensure efficient 

expenditure of taxpayer dollars; and, 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority has sufficient resources to fund higher 

payment standards; and, 

WHEREAS, increased payment standard amounts will Affirmatively Further 

Fair Housing objectives in the Seattle Metropolitan region; and, 



Resolution No. 5599 Higher Payment Standards for HCV 
June 18, 2018 KCHA Board Meeting 
Page 2 of 2 
 

NOW THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF 

KING, THAT: 

The Payment Standards for the Housing Authority’s Housing Choice Voucher 

program are hereby adjusted in accordance with the proposed recommendations, set 

forth at the June 18th Board of Commissioners meeting and attached hereto, and 

effective immediately. 

ADOPTED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF THE 

COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF 

KING THIS 18th DAY OF JUNE 2018. 

 

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE 

COUNTY OF KING, WASHINGTON 

 
 
 

     ___________________________ 
     DOUGLAS J. BARNES, Chair 

     Board of Commissioners 
 
 
 
 

_______________________ 
STEPHEN NORMAN 
Secretary 



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
5 



 

 

 
 

 
TO:  Board of Commissioners 
   
FROM: Dan Watson, Deputy Executive Director 

            
DATE: June 14, 2018 
 
RE: Resolution No. 5600: Authorizing acquisition of the Howe Property 

in Redmond, Washington 
 
Executive Summary 
Resolution No. 5600 would authorize the acquisition of a parcel of real property 
located at 16725 Cleveland Street in Redmond, Washington (the “Howe Property”).  
The half acre parcel, consisting of one commercial building, is located adjacent to the 
planned Sound Transit Redmond North Light Rail Station. The purpose of the 
acquisition is to further the potential assemblage of properties necessary for co-
location of an affordable housing development with a King County Metro bus transit 
layover facility that will service this transportation node.   

 
Background 
In anticipation of the Redmond North light rail station, King County has spent 
considerable time identifying a potential bus layover facility location to support feeder 
bus routes for the light rail stop. The facility will provide off-street parking for electric 
buses in-between routes and will include bus recharging stations and respite facilities 
for the drivers.  The County has identified a location proximate to the rail station that 
is currently occupied by commercial occupants in three contiguous privately owned 
parcels.   
 
While seeking to acquire land for its layover facility the County, in furtherance of its 
public goals regarding the development of affordable housing and residential density 
adjacent to light rail access, has further identified the possibility of dual use of this site 
to also provide affordable housing. 
 
County Request - The County has requested that KCHA assist in the assemblage of this 
site and further determine the feasibility of an affordable housing apartment complex 
built over the layover facility. KCHA has, however, also identified the acquisition of the 
Howe Property to be time sensitive and foundational to the feasibility of a co-located 
housing/transit development. The County has indicated a willingness to work with 
KCHA to significantly mitigate the Authority’s financial exposure in moving forward 
with this acquisition this early in the feasibility process.  
 
Current Status – KCHA has entered into negotiations to acquire the Howe Property, 
which is central to acquiring a sufficient land assemblage at this location. A Phase I 
environmental report, a title review and an appraisal are in process. The terms of the 
transaction include an initial option payment of $240,000, which would not be 
released to the seller until these reviews have been satisfactorily completed.   



Resolution No. 5600 The Howe Property and Project Profile 
June 18, 2018 KCHA Board Meeting 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
Actual acquisition of the property by KCHA, if it occurs, would not happen until the 
beginning of 2019. KCHA will utilize this extended contract period to more fully 
explore over-all project feasibility with King County and the City of Redmond.  
 
Staff Recommendation 
Adoption of Resolution No. 5600 is recommended. 

 
 



THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 5570 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ACQUISITION OF THE HOWE PROPERTY 
LOCATED IN REDMOND, WASHINGTON 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
 

WHEREAS, there is an increasingly serious shortage of affordable housing in 

King County, which the King County Housing Authority (“Housing Authority”) is 

charged with addressing pursuant to its mission of providing quality affordable housing 

opportunities equitably distributed within King County; and 

WHEREAS, it is a goal of local government and the Housing Authority to further 

fair housing in the region affirmatively, in part through the creation of affordable housing 

opportunities in areas with significantly appreciating housing costs; and  

WHEREAS, RCW 35.82.070(2) and (3) provide, in part, that a housing authority 

shall have the power to provide for the construction of housing projects within its area of 

operations; and 

WHEREAS, access to reliable public transportation is a critical resource for low-

income households, providing access to work, services, school, shopping, cultural and 

other activities for these residents; and 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority has identified acquiring and developing 

housing along planned mass transit corridors as a strategic priority to ensure the long-

term availability of low-income housing near reliable public transportation; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 35.82.120 directs that in the planning and creation of any 

housing project a housing authority shall take into consideration the relationship of the 



Resolution No. 5570 Acquisition of Howe property in Redmond 
June 18, 2018 KCHA Board Meeting 
Page 2 of 5 
 
project to any larger plan or long-range program for the development of the area in which 

the housing authority functions; and  

WHEREAS, King County (the “County”) has identified a specific property, 

comprised of a commercial building containing approximately 7,800 gross square feet 

located on a lot containing approximately 25,900 square feet, and commonly known as 

16725 Cleveland Street, Redmond, Washington (the “Howe Property” or “Property”) as a 

priority location for a County bus layover site for transit servicing the planned adjacent 

light rail station; and 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority has identified the area surrounding and 

including the Property as a high priority location for locating a transit-oriented affordable 

housing project for low-income households; and  

WHEREAS, the County has asked the Housing Authority to evaluate the 

viability of the Property for the co-location of a County bus transit layover facility and an 

affordable housing transit-oriented development apartment project; and  

WHEREAS, acquisition of the Property by the Housing Authority will serve the 

mission of the Housing Authority and the housing goals of the region by allowing the 

Authority to acquire the Property, prior to expected appreciation of property values, in 

anticipation of constructing low income housing units on the Property, which will be 

consistent with the larger plan for development of the area surrounding the Property; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 35.82.070(5) authorizes a housing authority to acquire real 

property by exercise of the power of eminent domain or by purchase in lieu of exercise of 

the power of eminent domain; and, 

 

426/1035/01677273-5 2 



Resolution No. 5570 Acquisition of Howe property in Redmond 
June 18, 2018 KCHA Board Meeting 
Page 3 of 5 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF 

KING, THAT: 

Section l:  Acquisition of the Property by the Housing Authority is necessary to 

provide affordable housing for persons of low income that is equitably distributed 

throughout areas of the Authority’s operations, in planned mass transit corridors with 

rising rents and high housing market costs in particular, and in a location that takes into 

consideration the relationship of the project to the larger plan or long-range program for 

the development of the area in which the Housing Authority functions. 

Section 2:  If the Housing Authority should be unsuccessful in acquiring the 

Property from the owner on satisfactory terms through negotiation and purchase in lieu of 

condemnation, the Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes the Executive Director to 

acquire the Property by condemnation through the exercise of the Housing Authority’s 

power of eminent domain for a price that is anticipated to be approximately Five Million 

Five Hundred Thousand Dollars  but which shall not exceed 110% of the appraised value 

of the Property pursuant to an appraisal completed by a Washington State licensed 

appraiser.  The Executive Director is hereby further vested with the authority, and with 

discretion in the exercise thereof, to give notice to the current owner of the Property of 

the Housing Authority’s intention to acquire the Property by eminent domain if it is 

unsuccessful in acquiring the Property on satisfactory terms through negotiation and 

purchase in lieu of condemnation.   

Section 3:  The Executive Director is hereby vested with the authority, and with 

discretion in the exercise thereof, to attempt to negotiate purchase of the Property from 

426/1035/01677273-5 3 



Resolution No. 5570 Acquisition of Howe property in Redmond 
June 18, 2018 KCHA Board Meeting 
Page 4 of 5 
 
the owner in lieu of condemnation.  If the Executive Director is successful in negotiation 

of the purchase of the Property from the owner in lieu of condemnation, then the 

Executive Director is hereby authorized (a) to sign a Purchase and Sale Agreement 

providing for the acquisition of the Property containing such terms and conditions as are 

customary in such transactions and as are deemed by the Executive Director to be in the 

best interests of the Housing Authority, and (b) to pay a non-refundable option payment 

not to exceed Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000.00) which shall be applied 

toward the purchase price in the event the Housing Authority acquires the Property.   

Section 4:  The Executive Director is further hereby vested with the authority, 

and with discretion in the exercise of such authority, to make a final determination after 

reviewing the results of the due diligence of the Property as to whether to proceed with 

the purchase of the Property if he deems it in the best interest of the Housing Authority.  

If the Executive Director makes a final determination to proceed, the Board of 

Commissioners hereby further authorizes the Executive Director, Stephen J. Norman, to 

take any and all actions necessary to consummate acquisition of the Property. 

Section 5:  The Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes the Executive 

Director, Stephen J. Norman, to execute any and all applications, agreements, 

certifications or other documents in connection with the submission of various funding 

and financing applications or to make any other arrangements necessary, in order to 

provide all or part of the interim and/or permanent financing of the Property. 

Section 6: The Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes the Executive 

Director, Stephen J. Norman, and in his absence, Deputy Executive Director Daniel R. 

Watson or Deputy Executive Director Jill Stanton, to execute on behalf of the Housing 

426/1035/01677273-5 4 



Resolution No. 5570 Acquisition of Howe property in Redmond 
June 18, 2018 KCHA Board Meeting 
Page 5 of 5 
 
Authority any and all contracts, agreements, certifications or other documents in 

connection with the acquisition of the Property. 

ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING 

AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING THIS 18th DAY OF JUNE, 2018. 

 
THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE 

COUNTY OF KING, WASHINGTON 
 
 

____________________________________ 
DOUGLAS J. BARNES, Chair 

 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
 STEPHEN J. NORMAN, Secretary 

426/1035/01677273-5 5 



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
6 



 
 
To: Board of Commissioners           
  
From: Craig Violante, Director of Finance 
 
Date: June 12, 2018 
 
Re:       New Bank Accounts 
 
Since the last Board meeting KCHA opened 8 new bank accounts.   
 
Bank:  Northwest Bank 
 
• King County Housing Authority DBA Auburn Square Operating Trust 
• King County Housing Authority DBA Auburn Square Security Deposit Trust 
• King County Housing Authority DBA Carriage House Operating Trust 
• King County Housing Authority DBA Carriage House Security Deposit Trust 
• King County Housing Authority DBA Cascadian Operating Trust 
• King County Housing Authority DBA Cascadian Security Deposit Trust 
• King County Housing Authority DBA Fairwood Operating Trust 
• King County Housing Authority DBA Fairwood Security Deposit Trust 
 
Purpose:  Accounts at Bank of America managed by Allied Property Management 
(Allied) were closed with full business checking accounts opened at Northwest Bank. 
Northwest Bank is the primary bank used by Allied. More properties managed by 
Allied will have their Operating and Security Deposit accounts moved to Northwest 
Bank in the coming months.   
 
The Operating Trust Accounts will be used to pay operating expenses related to the 
properties. The accounts will primarily receive wires from the Depository Account at 
Bank of America and issue checks.  Wire transfers will be made to the Operating 
Account to pay for the property’s operating expenses.   
 
The Security Deposit Trust accounts will be used to hold tenant security 
deposits. Transactions will include and be limited to deposits from the 
depository account and transfers to the operating account for tenant refunds. 
KCHA policy requires tenant security deposits and the practice is to hold 
security deposits in separate bank accounts. 



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
7 



 
 
 
To: Board of Commissioners 
  
From: Craig Violante, Director of Finance 
 
Date: June 12, 2018 
 
Re:       2018 Midyear Federal Revenue Update 
 
Executive Summary 
The Board adopted the Calendar Year 2018 Operating and Capital Budget (“2018 
budget”) via Resolution No. 5582 on December 18, 2017. Included in the budget 
were certain assumptions regarding 2018 Federal funding streams. 

 
As the Federal funding picture has now become clearer, and as a precursor to the 
July Midyear Financial Reforecast presentation to the Board, a brief presentation 
will be made at the June meeting contrasting the adopted 2018 budget to newly-
revised budget projections. 
 
 
 
 
 



King County Houisng Authority

2018 Funding Availability

2018 2018

Adopted Revised

Funding Source Budget Projections Change

MTW Block Grant $127,783,637 $142,833,636 $15,049,999

HCV Special Purpose Vouchers 13,524,780 15,595,431 2,070,651

Capital Fund Program 5,200,000 7,338,481 2,138,481

Public Housing Operating Fund Subsidy 8,664,842 9,732,467 1,067,625

  Totals $155,173,259 $175,500,015 $20,326,756

Change in Key Budget Assumptions

Budgeted 2018 HCV Inflation Factor 8.0%

Actual 2018 HCV Inflation Factor 18.3%

Budgeted 2018 HCV Prorate 97.600%

Actual 2018 HCV Prorate 99.745%

Budgeted 2018 Public Housing Prorate 90.000%

Actual* 2018 Public Housing Prorate 93.270%

*Through June.  Final Prorate will not be available until later in the year.



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
8 


















	201806 KCHA Board Agenda_Amended_2
	Tab Number 1
	201805 KCHA Board Minutes
	Monday, May 21, 2018
	I.  CALL TO ORDER
	II. ROLL CALL
	THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE
	COUNTY OF KING, WASHINGTON


	Tab Number 2
	201806 Voucher Report (LR)
	201806 Voucher Report (WX)
	Tab Number 3
	201806 Resolution No. 5598 Nike Manor (Memo)_jo
	201806 Resolution No. 5598 Nike Manor (Resolution)_jo
	Tab Number 4
	201806 Resolution No. 5599 HCV Payment Standards Increase Memo_jo
	From: Andrew Calkins, Senior Program Manager
	Date: June 12, 2018
	Re:       Resolution No. 5599: Authorizing Higher Payment Standards for the Housing Choice Voucher Program

	201806 Resolution No. 5599 HCV Payment Standards Increase Reso_jo
	Tab Number 5
	201806 Resolution No. 5600 Acquisiton of the Howe Property (Memo)
	201806 Resolution No. 5600 Board Resolution Authorizing Redmond Acquisition (Resolution)
	Tab Number 6
	201806 New Bank Accounts_jo
	From: Craig Violante, Director of Finance
	Date: June 12, 2018
	Re:       New Bank Accounts

	Tab Number 7
	201806 Revenue update 2018 midyear (Memo)
	From: Craig Violante, Director of Finance
	Date: June 12, 2018
	Re:       2018 Midyear Federal Revenue Update

	201806 Revenue update 2018 midyear (Attachment)
	Tab Number 8
	1403_001



